1: 03: 39 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
THI RD SPECI AL SESSI ON
Novenber 1, 2015
1: 03 p. m

Neurman called the House Finance Commttee neeting

to order at 1:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Mar k Neuman, Co-Chair

St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Les Gara

Lynn Gattis

David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki
Cat hy Munoz
Lance Pruitt
Tamm e W1 son

Bryce Edgnon

Pete Ecklund, Staff, Representative Mark Neuman; David
Teal , D rector, Legi sl ative Fi nance Di vi si on;
Representative Lora Reinbold, Representative Paul Seaton;

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve

Sam Kito |11
Dave Tal eri co;
Gabrielle Ledoux;

Representative Andy Josephson;
Representative Louise Stutes;
Representative Shelly

Hughes; Representative Dan Otiz; Representative M ke
Chenaul t.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Dani el Fauske, Pr esi dent Al aska Gasline Devel opnent
Corporation; Ken Vassar, General Counsel, Alaska Gasline

Devel opnent
and Chi ef
Cor por ati on.

House Fi nance Committee 1

Cor poration (AGC) ;
Fi nanci al

Joe Dubler, Vice President

Oficer, A aska Gasline Devel opnent

11/01/15 1: 03 P.M



SUMVARY
HB 3001 APPROP: LNG PRQIECT & FUND/ AGDC/ SUPP.

HB 3001 was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for
further consideration.

#hb3001
HOUSE BI LL NO. 3001

“"An Act nmaking supplenmental appropriations; naking

appropriations to capitalize f unds; maki ng
appropriations to the general fund from the budget
reserve fund (art. 11X sec. 17, Constitution of the

State of Alaska) in accordance with sec. 12(c), ch. 1,
SSSLA 2015; and providing for an effective date.”

1: 03: 39 PM

Co- Chair Thonmpson MOWED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute for HB 3001, Wor k Draft 29- GH3812\ E
(Wal l ace/ Martin, 11/1/15). There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

Co-Chair Neunman noted that the commttee would not nove the
bill fromcommttee during the neeting.

PETE ECKLUND, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE MARK NEUMAN, rel ayed
that the Senate Finance Committee would have an identica
bill.

1: 06: 04 PM

DAVID  TEAL, Dl RECTCR, LEA SLATIVE FINANCE DI VISION

addressed the Commttee Substitute (CS). He explained the
changes in the bill. He pointed to Section 2, which
appropriated the $69 nmllion buyout to acquire the
TransCanada interest in the natural gasline project. He
noted the to be done by three agencies including the
Departnment of Law (DOL), Departnent of Natural Resources
(DNR), and Departnment of Revenue (DOR) He noted that the
appropriations were tightly worded and there were specific
uses the noney would go to. The noney appropriated to the
agencies could not be used for other purposes. He drew
attention to fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. The CS nmade
sure that the departnents <could not enter long-term

House Fi nance Committee 2 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



contract. The comrittee substitute appropriated noney for
work to be conpleted during 2016. There was sone "w ggle
room to allow agencies to wuse noney across different
lines.

Co- Chair Neuman asked nenbers to hold questions.

M. Ecklund noted that there were wupdated nunbers in
Sections 3 and 4 for DNR and DOR

Co- Chair Neuman asked for the nunbers.

M. Ecklund detailed that DNR s request was $1.849 nillion,
and the former nunber was $2.126 million. He furthered that
DOR s request was $1.45 mllion and the former nunber was
$1.381 mllion.

Representative Gara asked for a repeat of the nunbers.

M. Ecklund repeated the nunbers.

1:11: 01 PM

M. Teal <continued with Section 5(a), appropriated to
acquire the interest in TransCanada. Sections (c) and (d)
were reinbursenments by the partners for the funds that
Al aska Gasline Developnent Corporation (AGC) had not
utilized from AGDC itself. He explained that not all of the
rei nmbursenent would go to the AKLNG fund, but an additional
funds would be available once the noney was reinbursed to
the funds. He noted that the title was shorter than the
governor's initial bill. He explained that HB 2001 had
aut hori zed the Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR) to cover
all of the expenditures that had been passed to date. It
did not allow any room for supplenental of any kind.
Al'l owi ng an additional $500 million, done with the gas |ine
buyout in mnd along with sone high supplenmental funds
needed for fire suppression.

1:16: 43 PM

M. Ecklund reiterated the supplenental appropriations for
DNR, DOR, and LAW which were all contingent on all parties
voting in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Neuman noted the bill was officially described as
a work program and budget, so the noney would be del egated

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 11/01/15 1:03 P. M



appropriately. He renmarked that the goal of the conmttee
substitute was to provide a "tight" appropriation bill. He
wondered if the commttee substitute represented the
"tightest" control possible. He also wanted to ensure that
the |egislature provided enough econony to AGDC in using
t he funds.

M. Teal believed the |anguage was as tight as possible.
The |anguage was not "bullet proof", but the intent was
cl ear.

Co- Chair Neuman suspected that nenbers speaking with the
adm ni strati on woul d nake the intent clear.

M. Teal added that the bill was a draft. He believed the
| anguage should be reviewed carefully by AGC and
adm ni stration to ensure al | parties wer e named
appropriately.

Representative Gattis asked about the four voting parties.
She asked not forcing four parties to vote yes to buyout
TransCanada.

M. Ecklund agreed that there was no contingency plan for
t he buyout of TransCanada.

Representative GGattis surmsed there was no reason to
provide funding if the AGC did not support t he
| egi sl ature's deci sion.

M. Ecklund replied in the affirmative.

1:21: 30 PM

Co- Chai r Neuman bel i eved t he concept had been
i nappropriately terned a "buyout." He shared that
approximately $7 mllion was intended for services

rendered. He stressed that TransCanada had participated to
cover Al aska's assets during the gather information to the
current tine. He wondered iif that was an accurate
sumat i on.

M. Teal replied in the affirnmative. He agreed that a
paynent owed to TransCanada. By taking the action the state
was effectively buying TransCanada out of their voting
rights.

House Fi nance Committee 4 11/01/15 1:03 P. M



Co-Chair Neunman clarified that as the noney was expended
did the Legislative Finance D vision (LFD) add codes to
track how noney was spent.

M. Teal replied in the affirmative. He explained that
codes were added to the three appropriations to the
departnments. The other noney was intended for the AKLNG
fund, which was tracked as it was delivered. He stressed
that LFD would track all the noney spent. He explai ned that
regular G- could be deposited into the AKLNG He furthered
that there were tracking codes that would follow the AKLNG
fund with ACGDC.

Co-Chair Neuman asked if the |legislature requested for
monthly reports from AGDC.

1: 25: 16 PM

M. Teal replied in the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler |ooked at the original version of the

bill, which described the organization that owned the
state's interest as "the TransCanada Al aska Devel opnent
| ncorporation.” He further noted that the conmmttee

substitute defined it as the "TransCanada Al aska M dstream
and Limted Partnership."” He wondered when the partnership
was created, and whether that was the correct target.

M. Teal replied that it was a subsidiary of TransCanada to
work on the project. He stressed the need to ensure that
the admnistration and AGC agree that all of the nanes
were correct.

Representative GQGuttenberg asked if there was a conflict
bet ween the organi zations and fiscal years.

M. Teal did not believe there was a conflict. He noted
that the state's fiscal year ran fromJuly 1 to June 30. He
did not believe there was any problem with the calendar
year and fiscal year.

M. Ecklund |ooked at page 3, line 5 of the bill. He
expl ai ned that the appropriations for the work program had
a budget should there be a positive vote in Decenber, the
appropriations would capitalize the AKLNG fund wthout
| apse.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 11/01/15 1:03 P. M



Co-Chair Neuman believed that wunder the prior bill the
noney could be swept. There was concern that agencies could
enter into long-term contracts wthout the legislature's
oversi ght.

M. Ecklund referred to testinony in another comittee
where LAW announced that the full $10 mllion would | apse
to G-, should the full funding not be utilized. The bill's
construction was the result of the allowance for the | apse
into G-. He explained that there had been situations when
contracts were fornulated during the fiscal year that would
obligate noney, but the work would occur in FY 17. He
stressed that the bill was constructed to prevent that
possi bl e situation.

Representative Quttenberg noted that there was a reference
to the cost accounting edit sourcing from 1241. He wondered
if that reference was included in the comrittee substitute.
He felt that there may need to be a subset of cost
accounting codes in order to properly track the funds.

1: 30: 35 PM

M. Teal responded that a nunbers portions would include
the fund "rollup", which addressed the precise fund code.
He shared that the current bill was drafted w th |anguage
only, so there was no reference to fund code. He stated
that the bill shoed that there was an appropriation from
GF. He l|ooked at Section 1(a), "it was the intent of the
| egislature that the appropriations nmade in Sections 2
through 4, shall be accounted for separately from UG- " He
stated that the section gave LFD the authority to create
the tracking code. He explained that the 1241 code would be
used in the transactions.

Representative Gara thought people were getting close to
the sanme page. He pointed to page 2, line 21. He wondered
about the legality of the |language. He he understood that
the legislature only wanted to pay TransCanada, but felt
that it could be a different nunmber. He stated that if it
was $69.3 mllion, could they give the executive branch
t hat power to change the nunber.

M. Teal replied that it was done frequently wth
appropriation bills. He stated that appropriation bills
sonetimes specified, "the anobunt required to pay according
to the fornmula is appropriated.” The reasoning behind

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



appropriating the maxi mum nunber was to ensure that the
proj ect had the necessary funds.

Representative Gara understood why it had been included. He
stressed that adding $100 million nore, and wondered coul d
they really give the executive branch the power. The
alternative would be to designate a nunber not to be
exceeded.

M. Teal replied that the commttee substitute's was
drafted in the traditional formal. He stressed that the
appropriation was the necessary anount. He shared that the
project would only us the anbunt necessary.

Representative Gara believed it was correct and would | ook
further into the issue.

M. Ecklund replied that Legislative Legal Services had not
objected to the | anguage.

Representative Gara wanted to nake sure the admnistration
did not spend nore than necessary the anobunt had to be
expended by June 30, 2016. He was concerned about spending
being limted by dates in the bill.

1: 37: 01 PM

M. Teal did not have a great deal of concern about the
issue. He did not believe agencies were asking for nore
than they needed. The point of the structure was to specify
t hat agencies received in FY 17 request. The adm nistration
did not want noney in the bill that carried forward to.

M. Ecklund read the language in the bill differently. He
explained that the agencies did not have to spend all of
t he noney by the deadline.

Representative (Gara suggested renoving the |anguage,
because there may be fear in the admnistration that the
noney woul d not be avail abl e.

1: 39: 20 PM

Representative WIson addressed DNR. She wondered if the
agency would be able to go for the marketing lead and
anal yst positions if they were only funded to June 2016.

House Fi nance Committee 7 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



M. Teal answered that the appropriation currently could
fund for FY 16, but was expected to wait to FY 17 to fund
the remainder. He stressed that it was wup to the
| egislature to fund FY 17. He announced that no state
enpl oyees were guaranteed funding for each fiscal year.

Representative Wl son stated that the project was different
than standard state projects. She remarked that the three
| arge conpanies did not run business the sane way as the
state. She felt that there needed to be a guarantee for the
high |evel positions. She requested that DNR share the
funding forecast for the outlying years. She stressed that
the AKLNG project was an extrenely large project, and she
wondered if the project should be dealt in a simlar matter
to the state agencies.

M. Teal replied that it was the position that every state
agency was in that they may not be funded in the follow ng
year. He believed it was a good question for the agencies.

1: 43: 27 PM

M. Ecklund added that the legislature had received
addi tional information on the $840, 000 position.

Representative Wl son wondered if the $500 nmillion would be
fromthe GF or CBR

M. Teal explained that the appropriation in HB 2001
allowed up to $500 million be renoved from the CBR to pay
the G- bills after July 1. He explained that the noney was
still in the CBR, and would remain in the CBR until the GF
funds were conpletely depleted. He stressed that the CBR
was never directly used, rather was an over-expenditure of
GF backfilled with the CBR

Representative Kawasaki expressed concern regarding the
existing contracts' dates. He announced that Black and
Veatch was contracted in Septenber 2014 until June 2016. He
felt that contracts were outlined with |ist of deliverables
and a specific date, resulting in recruiting difficulties.
He wondered if the language in the bill had been in other
appropriation bills in the past.

M. Teal replied that the |anguage had not appeared in

prior appropriation bills. He announced essentially the
entire anmount was for contract work. He stated that DOL had

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



testified that expenditures could be up to $1 mllion per
nmont h, which was the cause of the |anguage inclusion. Once
contracts were signed, the noney was obligated, and would
not | apse at the end of FY 16. He stressed that the purpose
of the | anguage was to ensure a pure FY 16 suppl enental, so
no noney would be carried over into the followng fisca
year.

Representative Kawasaki had the concern that contracts
typically spanned over vyears and that the bill was
departing fromthe usual procedure.

Co- Chair Neuman turned the question around and asked what
woul d happen wi t hout the |anguage.

M. Teal replied that DOL could have a |ong-term contact
so the appropriation funded possible FY 17 and FY 18
activities. He explained that noney had been carried
forward from one year to the next on the current project,
because of obligations.

M. Ecklund noted that the original request did not ask for
any |apse extensions for FY 17. He stressed that the
request was for FY 16 al one.

M. Teal continued that the departnent could request a
| apse date extension to the legislature. He stressed that
that | anguage in the bill only prevented a current |apse.

1: 49: 39 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked for confirmation that the noney
was designed to get through the pre-FEED (front end
engi neering and design).

M. Ecklund replied that the noney was for cal endar 2016
and may not get all the way through pre-FEED

M. Teal added that the cal endar year 2016 plan was half of
2016 and 2017. The plan showed $157 million in FY 16 plus
$100 mllion to AGDC over the next three years and $100
mllion to various agencies over the next three years. He
stressed that it was a question of how nuch noney the
| egi sl ature wanted to put in the AKLNG fund.

1: 53: 16 PM
AT EASE

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



2:01: 21 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Neuman discussed the plan for the presentation. He
listed AGDC staff available to testify via tel econference.

DANI EL FAUSKE, PRESI DENT, ALASKA GASLINE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATI ON (via teleconference), asked corporate counsel
to provide the presentation.

KEN VASSAR, GENERAL COUNSEL, ALASKA GASLINE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATI ON  ( AGDC) (via teleconference), provided a
Power Poi nt presentation titled "Confidentiality" dated
Novenber 1, 2015. He explained that AGDC was subject to the
public records act.

M. Vassar | ooked at slide 2, "Public Record Disclosures":
AGDC was granted broad confidentiality authority in
the corporation’s enabling statutes through HB 4
(2013)

AGDC may enter into Confidentiality Agreenents (CA) as
necessary to carry out its functions [AS 31.25. 090]

Confidential information is not subject to the state’s
public records disclosure | aws

Confidential information shared by AGDC w th another
public agency, are not public records

M. Vassar hi ghl i ght ed slide 3, "Public Record
Di scl osures":

CAs are valid and binding against all parties
Information and trade secrets of the corporation are
confidential if disclosure would cause commercial or
conpetitive harm

Information that discloses the particulars of a

business or the affairs of a private enterprise is
confidential and not subject to public disclosure

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



SB 138 added provision to ensure that the DNR & DOR
Comm ssioners have access to confidential information
related to North Sl ope natural gas pipeline contracts

2: 05: 58 PM

Co-Chair Neuman noted the reason for going into further
depth on the issue. He stated that if there was proprietary
information, and stressed the availability for |egislators
to be a part of

M. Vassar noved to slide 4, "Confidentiality Agreenents":

Al AGC enployees sign a standard confidentiality
agreenent upon enpl oynent

Oiginally all AGC board nenbers also signed a
confidentiality agreenent upon appoi ntnent

Governor Wl ker has expressed a desire for nore
transparency in the corporation s business

New AGDC board nenbers have not signed CAs
Governor Wal ker notified Alaska LNG partners that
Comm ssioners, the Attorney General and other cabinet

officials would not sign CAs

M. Vassar addressed slide 5, "Draft Confidentiality
Regul ati ons":

AGDC is authorized to adopt regulations to carry out
corporate duties and functions

Attorney General has worked with AGDC to draft a set
of proposed confidentiality regul ations:

Public Hearing held on Cct 15th
30-day public conment period closed Cct 21st
Public coments will be reviewed by AGC s board

Suppl enent al public comment peri od bei ng
consi dered

House Fi nance Committee 11 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



Board nmay adopt the regulations as drafted,
nodi fy them or decide to take no action

2:11:51 PM

M. Vassar continued that the corporation could not change
the ternms for a valid contract it had already entered into.

Co- Chair Neuman comruni cated that proposed regul ations and
comments were in nenbers' backup docunents.

M. Vassar noved to slide 6, "Draft Confidentiality
Regul ati ons":

After Decenber 1st, AGDC may only enter into a CA to
protect specific categories of information:

-Tax and financi al

-Credit related

-Proprietary business information

-Trade secrets

-Sal es, marketing and pricing strategies
-Information required to be confidential under
state or federal |aw

Confidentiality Agreenents thenselves shall not be
treated as confidenti al

M. Vassar discussed slide 7, "Draft Confidentiality
Regul ati ons":

AGDC shall meke its records available to the public
pursuant to the Al aska Public Records Act

Board nenbers may neet in executive session to
consider confidential matters

Directors, officers, enployees and agents of the

corporation nust preserve the confidentiality of
i nformation

Board shall endeavor to limt the anount of
information it withholds fromthe public

2:22:51 PM

House Fi nance Committee 12 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



M. Vassar turned to slide 8, "Draft Confidentiality
Regul ati ons":

Information is assumed to be public, absent clear
indication to the contrary

AGDC  President shal | appoi nt a commttee to
periodically conduct a confidentiality review

Upon review, if a need for confidentiality does not
still exist, information shall be made public

Board shall make available to the public the entirety
of any contract submtted for its approval 10 days
prior to neeting to consider the contract

M. Vassar stated that information was assuned to be
public, absent <clear indication to the contrary. He
expl ained that the board shall make available to the public
the entirety of any contract submtted for its approval 10
days prior to neeting to consider the contract.

Co- Chair Neuman wondered if there was sonething wong with
the current confidentiality agreenments pertaining to the
AKLNG project. He queried any changes.

M. Vassar replied that there was nothing wong with the
existing regulations with the exception of public policy.
The private industry approach ran into the open and
transparent policy of the current adm nistration.

In response to a question from Co-Chair Neuman, M. Fauske
answered that it had been the governor's desire that board
menbers shoul d not sign confidentiality agreenents.

2:28: 06 PM

M. Vassar elaborated agreed with his M. Fauske. He
stressed that AGDC needed to explore a way of addressing
confidentiality, and how to address in Ilight of having
board menber s who had not si gned confidentiality
agreenents. There was an existing statute that all board

nmenbers of corporations were subject to put limtations on
how board menber s put to use the know edge of
confidentiality, like telling board nenbers that what they

heard in executive sessions was to remai n confidenti al .

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



Co- Chai r Neuman asked about inpacts of regulations.

M. Fauske answered that based on public comments it would
probably inpact the corporation, it current form He
believed the process wuld be workable, but much nore
difficult.

Co-Chair Neuman surmised it was cormmon.

M. Fauske stated that it was not up to AGDC to determ ne
what was confidential.

Co-Chair Neuman asked if M. Fauske or staff had been
required to |eave the room because they had not signed
confidentiality agreenents.

M. Fauske replied in the affirmative. He elaborated that
it was not uncommon.

Co- Chai r Neuman  asked if it had interfered wth
negotiations. M. Fauske replied that it had not nmade
things any easier, but it did not make things inpossible
He found people were overly cauti ous.

2:34: 52 PM

Co- Chair Neuman queried the process that the partners would
be required to undergo to discuss itens deened confidenti al
nmenbers of AGDC who had not signed the confidentiality
agr eenent s.

JOCE DUBLER, VICE PRESIDENT AND CHH EF FINANCI AL OFFI CER,
ALASKA GASLI NE DEVEL OPMVENT CORPORATI ON (via
tel econference), replied that there was a current related
i ssue. He shared that there was a proposed technol ogy for
the LNG termnal, and AGC had not vyet executed an
accept abl e non-di scl osure agreenent to the third-party that
owned the proprietary technology. He shared that Fritz
Cruzen was currently unable to participate in those
di scussi ons.

Co-Chair Neunman stressed that adding nore cost to the
proj ect enhanced the possibility for project failure. He
wondered if the confidentiality issues would cost tinme and
nmoney, because of the proposed regul ations.

House Fi nance Committee 14 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



M. Dubler replied that it did not currently cost any tine,
but did not allow the AGDC representative full access to
t he dat a.

Co- Chair Neuman wondered how the AGDC board could nmake an
i nformed deci sion on Decenber 4 as to whether to proceed on
the AKLNG project wi t hout access to the required
i nformati on.

M. Fauske replied that the decision should be positive. He
shared that the AGC had confidence in the information

2:38: 00 PM

Co- Chair Neunman asked if M. Fauske understood M. Rigdon
Boykin's role and responsibility as a nenber of the AKLNG
gas team

M. Fauske answered in the affirmative. He felt that M.
Boyki n had kept AGDC infornmed and believed he was an astute
chi ef negotiator and |iaison.

Co- Chair Neunman asked if M. Boykin was under contract and
who paid him

M. Fauske replied that he was under contract and was paid
t hrough the AKLNG fund.

Co-Chair Neuman asked if AGC or the board directed M.
Boykin's activities.

M. Fauske replied that he was M. Boykin's boss. He stated
the board was apprised of his behavior on a regular basis
on his activities.

Co-Chair Neuman asked for verification that that M. Boykin
was primarily negotiating the commercial agreenents.

M. Fauske replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Neuman observed that there were two issues:
commerci al negotiations and AKLNG pipeline construction. He
wondered why M. Boykin was not under contract with DNR

M . Fauske deferred the question to his coll eague.

M. Dubler replied that there were rmany conmmercial
agreenents relating the AKLNG project, and only sone

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



related directly to the wupstream conponents under the
responsibility of DNR He explained that M. Boykin had
been responsible for negotiating all agreenents including
gover nance, wi t hdrawal , expansion and ot her aspects
affecting AGDC and the overall project.

Co-Chair Neuman queried the types of internal |ega
services with AGDC.

M. Vassar responded that the legal services on the
drafting and negotiating AKLNG docunents, by statute, was
in the province of the attorney general. He explained that
the attorney general had appointed an assistant attorney
general for that purpose. He furthered that the attorney
general had entered into a contract with the law firm
Greenburg and Traurig, to provide assistance in the AKLNG
project. He announced that he was the primary |egal counsel
for AGDC on the side of AGDC not relating to AKLNG

2:45: 42 PM

Co-Chair Neuman asked how previous |legislation, HB 4
establish the necessary |egal services, and how had those
| egal services changed over tine.

M. Vassar replied that HB 4 authorized AGC to retain
outside legal counsel. He explained that he was under
contract with AGDC. He stated that other outside counsel
could be utilized based on appropriations available, and
the need for counsel. He stated that fornmer |egislation, SB
138 put the attorney general in charge of the AKLNG
matters.

Co-Chair Neuman asked if there was an attorney/client
privilege between AGC and DOL concerning the proposed
confidentiality regulations, would AGC be able waive the
privilege in order to conduct discussions with DOL.

M. Vassar answered that the departnent had already
di scussed with its board in public on the record the
drafting of its regulations. He did not think there was any
attorney-client privilege to be waived. There were ethica
attorney-client privileges. He stated that the attorney
general had not taken the position of general corporate
regul ati ons because it had to do with | egal representation.

2:49: 51 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson wondered why AGDC was proposing to limt
its rights under existing |aw.

M. Fauske replied that the proposal was intended to
deliver the information to the nmenbers.

M. Vassar elaborated and referred back to slide 6. He
noted that AGXC would still be able to protect the
information. He stressed that the Ilist still included
protecting trade secrets and proprietary busi ness
information. He shared that there was a certain |evel of
battling semantics in the confidentiality agreenents.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked if AGDC had to enter into a
confidentiality agreenment every tine it came up under the
bullets listed on slide 6. M. Vassar replied in the
negati ve.

Co- Chair Thonpson wondered how the governor had the right
to dictate to the ADGC board that it should not sign
confidentiality agreenents. He bel i eved AGDC was
aut ononous.

M. Vassar replied that the corporation was not autononous
from the governor's office. The corporation was owned by
t he state.

2:57: 03 PM

Co- Chair Neuman referred to the intent of passed
| egi sl ation that AGDC should be fully autononous.

M. Fauske replied in the negative. He shared that he had
been present during negotiations on HB 4 and stressed that
the state had ownership of AGDC. He shared that nost board
nmenbers were appoi nted by the governor

3:00: 32 PM

Co- Chai r Neuman st at ed t hat t he i ssue ar ound
confidentiality was that AGDC should have the ability to do
its work wthout pressure from |egislators, agencies, or
other. He stated that the board was supposed to be fully
aut ononous. He pointed to nuch concern related to AGDC.

House Fi nance Committee 17 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



M. Fauske understood the concern. He believed that the
goal should be to renove the <concerns. He was very
commtted to the project and wanted to nake sure that
comuni cation and a | evel of trust was enhanced. He was not
aware of any pressure put on board nenbers from the
gover nor.

Co- Chair Neuman hoped to have a successful pipeline.

Co- Chair Thonpson spoke to public hearings from October 15.
He referred to testinony fromnnultiple people. He read from
a typed paper.

3:07:12 PM

M. Fauske answered that the regulations were only proposed
and had not yet been adopted. The agency did not want to
adopt regulations that would be to its detrinment. He stated
that the action would go to the board at sone point.

M. Vassar elaborated that AGC was currently in the
process of review ng the proposed regul ations. The agency
did not want to do anything that would result in the state
not participating in AKLNG The board would nake the
decision, he believed it should be taken seriously. One of
the reasons the comment period had been extended due to the
great deal of respect for its private industry partners in
AKLNG.

Co- Chair Thonpson pointed to slide 8 and read the final
bullet point. He believed it would be disadvantageous to
sign confidentiality agreenents for nmultiple contracts. He
thought it was contrary to business. He |ooked at other
guestions that had al ready been addressed.

3:11: 38 PM

Co- Chair Neunman asked if there was enough information on
the regulations to know if he supported them

M. Fauske answered that the agency would review the
proposed regul ati ons.

Representative Gattis Dbelieved the <conversation about

confidentiality was a good exanple of why governnent should
not be in business. She wondered if the state was going to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



act like a business to make noney or if it would act as a
governing entity.

M. Fauske agreed. He canme from the background of Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation (AHFC), which had run like a
business and did nortgages. He shared that AGC had to
perform in the sanme way, but also act as a business
part ner.

Representative Gattis hoped the state would act like its
partners and would remain in the room with its partners
during di scussi ons.

3:16: 23 PM

Representative WIson wondered how the legislature could
stand in TransCanada's place wthout a confidentiality
agr eenent .

M. Fauske restated the question. He surmsed that the
guestion was related to AGC s ability to have strong
confidentiality agreenents, and whether TransCanada may
have a stronger position than the state.

Representative Wl son agreed with that summati on.

M. Fauske answered that there was a notivation going
forward. He stressed that the product should be focused on
an effective system

Representative WIson announced that this |egislation was
an intense decision, and entrusted AGC to neke the best
deci sions. She wondered if it would be difficult for the
state to take TransCanada's seat, should there be a problem
with the <confidentiality agreenments. She queried the
approximate date of the signed confidentiality agreenents,
and the date of the neeting that AGDC was asked to |eave
t he neeting.

M. Fauske replied that all enployees of the corporation
had signed confidentiality agreenents. He could not give an
exact date of the neeting, but recalled that it was a tine
that AGDC was heavily invol ved i n ASAP.

Representative WIson surmsed that the state was out of

conpliance for over a year, and wondered why the
regul ati ons were only just being drafted.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



M. Fauske responded that, as ASAP was not a strong
project, there nust be a careful system as to how
information was utilized. He shared that AGDC devel oped a
plan to benefit both projects.

3:22:46 PM

M. Dubler explained that the ASAP and AKLNG issue was a
conpetition issue that the producers noticed. He stressed
that the issue was to keep information confidential between
the two projects.

Representative WIson was concerned that nothing had been
done the first time AGC had been asked to leave a room
during discussions due to confidentiality. She thought
confidentiality agreenents should be signed.

Representative Munoz wondered whether M. Boykin had signed
a confidentiality agreenent. M. Fauske replied in the
affirmati ve.

Representati ve Munoz spoke to the subjective nature of what
was deened to be confidential. M. Vassar asked for
clarification on the question. Representative Minoz asked
how t he i ssue woul d be resol ved.

M. Vassar replied that the nodel that currently was in
place. He stated that it was relatively easy, and basically
everything was confidential under one unbrella, but one had
to think about each item of information. He stressed that
it was really up to each individual party whet her
i nformation was restricted by t he confidentiality
agr eenent .

3:28:31 PM

Representative Munoz wondered if the regul ations would add
delay and cost to the project. She wondered if the draft
regul ations were in the best interest of AGDC.

M. Vassar stated that the existing confidentiality
agreenents made his life sinple as the attorney for AGDC
Everything was confidential. Had to keep track of what //
not a sinple matter. He liked things that nmade his life as
si npl e as possi bl e.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



Vice-Chair Saddler provided a summation of testinony by
AGDC. He stressed that alignment and |ow costs were
critical to success. He wondered if the regulations would
speed or del ay progress.

M. Fauske answered that the regulations would slow the
process.

Vice-Chair Saddler noted that the draft regulations had
strict Iimtations, and queried AGC s understandi ng of how
t he determ nati on woul d be nmade.

M. Vassar replied that if there was a question it would
i nvol ve discussion, and stressed the corporation would make
t he deci sion.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked what benefits the regulations
woul d bring to achieve gasline progress. M. Fauske stated
that the regulations would ensure that the process was open
and transparent.

3:33: 57 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked how openness and transparency
woul d benefit the process. He noted that total transparency
woul d be detri nental

M. Fauske replied that the inplied benefit of transparency
was to ensure the confort |evel between the |egislature and
the public for greater access to information.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if other public corporations
disclosed their comercial agreenments on the basis of
transparency inplied benefit.

M. Vassar answered that he could not address the |egal
per spective from al | public cor por at i ons. The
confidentiality power the other corporations had, was case
by case. He shared that they had the ability to keep things
confidential. For exanple AHFC was in the business of
buyi ng nortgage | oans.

Representati ve Kawasaki addressed slide 6. He wondered if

there were other categories that were not included in the
list.

House Fi nance Committee 21 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



M. Vassar replied that the list was fairly inclusive. He
explained that the admnistration desired to shift the
presunption from all things confidential to all things
publi c.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki queried the process that counsel at
AGDC woul d be able to filter through the categories.

M. Vassar replied that as a practical matter, the
di scussi ons occurred in t he proprietary busi ness
information category. The term was not well-defined, so the
drafting of the agreenents woul d address those issues.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked if AGDC be able to conply
shoul d the draft regul ati ons be passed.

M. Vassar replied that the regulations would dictate the
kinds of agreenents the corporation entered into in the
future.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked if AGDC would be able to
conply with the proposed regul ati on.

M. Vassar enphasized that nothing in the regul ations was
intended to be retroactive.

3:40: 57 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki asked if the attorney general was
| egal counsel to AKLNG

M. Vassar replied in the affirmative.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki wondered who had the authority to
procure | egal counsel for AKLNG

M. Vassar replied that the attorney general had authority
procure the | egal counsel for AKLNG by statute.

Co- Chair Thonpson stressed that the security of the state
and the partners was not granted under the proposed
regul ations. He felt that the regulations did not |ine up
with the responsibilities of the CA

M. Vassar answered that if the state entered into a
confidentiality agreenent under the regulations, t he

House Fi nance Committee 22 11/01/15 1:03 P. M



confidentiality agreement would be the security for the
counter party.

Co- Chair Thonpson renmarked that the partners had sensitive
information, and he wanted to ensure that the partners were
secure in discussions.

M. Vassar responded that the counter parties were not
satisfied with the draft regul ati ons.

3:44: 38 PM

Representative Gara asked if M. Fauske would meke the
final decision on the regulations. M. Fauske replied in
t he negative. The board woul d nake the final decision.

Representative Gara outlined the approval process. M.
Fauske agreed.

Representative Gara wondered if regulations were outlined
and then were presented to the board. M. Fauske replied in
the affirmative.

Representati ve Gara not ed t hat many statutes had
confidentiality rules, so the regulations could not violate
the already adopted statutes. M. Vassar agreed.

Representative Gara asked for verification that M .
Vassar's role was to wite the regulations in a way that
was |legal. M. Vassar answered yes, but did give assistance
in hel ping to understand ram ficati ons.

Representative Gara remarked that there were tines prior to
the current admnistration that Iimted the attendance of
the adm nistration to certain neetings. M. Fauske replied
in the affirmative.

Representative Gara noted that the AGC staff were always
able to attend neetings, because they had been subject to
the confidentiality agreenents. He wondered if the proposed
regul ations attenpted to change the opportunity for AGC to
attend neetings. M. Fauske responded that the limtations
depended on the final adoption of the regulation. He opined
that the partners may restrict attendance, should they find
the regulations to be too restrictive or not conducive to
their satisfaction. He stressed that AGDC could not always
determ ne what the other parties would deem "confidential."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



Representative Gara spoke to the governor's goal of
transparency, and he |ooked at slide 6. There were nmany
strategies the state would want to remain confidential. He
asked for verification that would maintain confidentiality
in the specific outline. M. Fauske replied in the
affirmative.

3:50: 34 PM

Co-Chair Neuman wondered if there were instances that
restricted AGC because of confidentiality agreements. M.
Fauske replied in the affirmative.

Representative Guttenberg |ooked at the list on slide 6. He
wondered if he could ask about specific confidentia
cat egori es.

M. Vassar replied that all of the things wuld be
confidential .

Representative Guttenberg asked if he could be told the
list of confidential categories, but not the detail of
confidentiality.

M. Vassar replied that it depended on the confidentiality
agr eenent .

Representative Quttenberg |ooked at slide 8, which stated,
"information is assuned to be public, absent clear
indication to the contrary.”" He remarked that there were
situations where information was public, even though it had
been published. He expressed frustration, because the
person inside the corporate structure could not directly
address that issue. He wondered if that situation would be
covered under "information assunmed to be public.”

3:54: 30 PM

M. Vassar answered that the bullet on slide 8 was intended
to be a policy direction that AGC would not agree that
sonething was confidential wunless the party asking for
confidentiality had a reason

Representative Guttenberg wondered what would occur if a

person had signed a confidentiality agreenment, what that
person could discuss at a | egislative neeting.

House Fi nance Committee 24 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



M. Dubler answered that the person could nmake up a
proposed set of slides to share with the legislature in
public and took them to the producers, and the producers
had agreed.

Representative CQuttenberg asked for wverification that it
was already prescreened by producers. M. Dubler replied
that it would depend on the question.

Representative Quttenberg asked what would occur during
confidential business decisions.

M. Dubler replied that AGC wuld not provide the
informati on because it did not have it.

3:59:31 PM

Representative Guttenberg asked if the state was at the
point of FEED, but AGDC could not give the |egislature
about where the pipe was built.

M. Dubler replied that AGC had responded that there were
vari ous places that could construct the pipelines.

Co-Chair Neuman had been informed that there was the
ability to manufacture 48 inch pipe in the U S

Representative GQGuttenberg stressed that there could be a
conpetitive edge on bidding, should those parties know that
they were being considered. He stressed that t he
| egi sl ature could not that general request.

Representati ve Pruitt asked i f AGDC currently had
confidentiality agreenents signed with the various parties.
M. Vassar replied in the affirmative.

Representative Pruitt wondered if the proposed regul ations
al l owed for previously agreed upon confidential information
be released to the public sans consent of the parties. M.
Vassar replied in the negative.

Representative Pruitt queried the reasoning for choosing

the date Decenber 1. M. Vassar replied that the date may
be changed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



Co-Chair Neuman asked who would decide on the date's
ext ensi on.

M. Vassar replied that in all likelihood it would be
shorter than the original coment period. He stated that
AGDC woul d deci de the date.

4:04: 05 PM

Representative Pruitt asked to confirm that the Decenber 4
date had nothing to do with the determ nation on Decenber
1

M. Vassar replied in the affirmative.
Representative Pruitt wondered if the state was placing the

burden of proof be placed on the other parties, when
i nfornmati on was not rel eased.

M. Vassar answered that the intention was that in
negotiating confidentiality agreenents, AGDC would not
agree to keep sonething confidential, unless the other

party was able to denonstrate the need for confidentiality.
He stressed that the confidentiality agreenment would
dictate exactly the withheld information.

Representative Pruitt asked if it happened in any other
si tuation. M. Vassar replied that he was not famliar
with other negotiations of confidentiality agreenents on
t hat basi s.

Representative Pruitt asked if there was sonething the
state felt should be confidential. M. Fauske replied in
the affirmative.

4:07:16 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler felt that the regul ations would depress
the likelihood of success for the AKLNG project, against
the rhetorical benefit of transparency. He wondered why 85
percent of the funds for M. Boykin's pay canme from ASAP.

M. Fauske replied that when the contract was originally
drafted for M. Boykin, it was understood that he would
Iiaison between the two projects. The current allocation
nmet hodol ogy was appropriate, because at the tinme both
proj ects were ongoi ng.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



Vice-Chair Saddler inferred that it was a hol dover fromthe
time of the drafting of the contract. He asked if there was
a reason it could not be adjusted.

M. Fauske agreed that the contract could and probably
woul d be adj ust ed.

Co-Chair Thonpson discussed the agenda for the follow ng
day.

HB 3001 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
4:12:10 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:12 p. m

House Fi nance Committee 27 11/01/15 1: 03 P. M



